**Labor Management Relations** 

# Voluntary and Non-Disciplinary Actions

Departments of the Army and the Air Force National Guard Bureau Arlington, VA 22202-3231 13 July 2007

**UNCLASSIFIED** 

# **SUMMARY of CHANGE**

TPR 715 Voluntary and Non-Disciplinary Actions Revision dated 13 July 2007

- o Provides more clarity and specificity in addressing non-disciplinary action issues
- o Changes procedures for voluntary or non-disciplinary actions, including changes to the law regarding 32 U.S.C. 709 and the Americans with Disabilities Act
- o Changes rules for termination of General Officers
- o Clarifies Management-Directed Reassignment rules for employee concurrence/non-concurrence with change to lower grade actions

Departments of the Army and the Air Force National Guard Bureau Arlington, VA 22202-3231 13 July 2007

# **Labor Management Relations**

# **Voluntary and Non-Disciplinary Actions**

By Order of the Secretaries of the Army and the Air Force:

H STEVEN BLUM Lieutenant General, USA Chief, National Guard Bureau

Official:

GEORGE R. BROCK Chief, Plans and Policy Division

**History.** This printing publishes a revision of TPR 715.

**Summary.** This revision updates the Human Resources procedures for voluntary and non-disciplinary actions for National Guard technicians, including changes to the law regarding 32 United States Code (U.S.C.) 709 and the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA).

**Applicability.** This regulation applies to Title 32 U.S.C. National Guard technicians employed by the Army National Guard (ARNG) and Air National Guard (ANG) in the various states, territories and District of Columbia as defined by 10 U.S.C.§ 10216 & 10217.

**Proponent and exception authority.** The proponent of this regulation is the Chief, National Guard Bureau. The proponent has the authority to approve exceptions to this regulation when consistent with controlling law and regulation.

**Management Control Process.** This regulation is not subject to the management control requirements of AR 11-2 (Management Control) and does not contain management control provisions.

**Supplementation.** Supplementation of this regulation/instruction is authorized. One copy of any supplement should be provided to Chief, National Guard Bureau, ATTN: NGB-J1-TNL, 1411 Jefferson Davis Highway, Arlington, VA 22202-3231.

**Suggested Improvements.** Users are invited to submit comments and suggested improvements on DA Form 2028 (Recommended Changes to Publications and Blank Forms) directly to the Chief, National Guard Bureau, ATTN: NGB-J1-TNL, 1411 Jefferson Davis Highway, Arlington, VA 22202-3231.

Distribution. B.

<sup>\*</sup> This publication supersedes TPR 715, 23 February 1987.

# Table of Contents

# Chapter 1

# Introduction

- 1-1. Purpose
- 1-2. References
- 1-3. Explanation of Abbreviation and Terms
- 1-4. Responsibilities

# Chapter 2

# **Voluntary Action**

- 2-1. Resignation
- 2-2. Change to a Lower Grade
- 2-3. Optional Retirement
- 2-4. Abandonment of Position

# Chapter 3

# **Non-Disciplinary Action**

- 3-1. Loss of Military Membership
- 3-2. Failure to Meet a Condition of Employment
- 3-3. Military Appointment Requirements
- 3-4. Termination of General Officers
- 3-5. Management-Directed Reassignment
- 3-6. Transfer of Function
- 3-7. Furlough for 30 Days or Less (22 workdays)
- 3-8. Decrease in the Hours of Duty for a Part-time Technician
- 3-9. Enforced Leave

# **Appendices**

- **A.** References
- B. Leave and Absence Coding

# Glossary

# Chapter 1 Introduction

# 1-1. Purpose

This technician personnel regulation establishes responsibilities, policies and procedures for all voluntary and non-disciplinary actions in the National Guard Technician Program. Section 10, Public Law 90-486 requires issuance of regulations to prescribe the policies and responsibilities in Technician Personnel Programs. This regulation meets those requirements and provides The Adjutants General (TAG) and the Commanding General (District of Columbia) regulatory guidance for the administration of the National Guard Technician Program at the state level.

### 1-2. References

Required and related publications and prescribed and referenced forms are listed in Appendix A.

# 1-3. Explanation of abbreviations and terms

Abbreviations and special terms used in this regulation are explained in the glossary.

# 1-4. Responsibilities

- a. The Chief, National Guard Bureau (CNGB) serves as the strategic focal point in developing, managing, and integrating employment of National Guard capabilities for the Office of the Secretary of Defense, the Joint Staff, and the Departments of the Army and Air Force in support of Combatant Commanders. Administers DoD, Joint, Army and Air Force programs; acquires, distributes, and manages resources. Coordinates departmental policies and programs for the employment and use of National Guard technicians under section 709 of Title 32, U.S.C., in accordance with the National Guard Bureau Charter.
- b. NGB-J1 Manpower and Personnel Directorate serves as the primary advisor to the CNGB on all personnel and manpower issues in the National Guard. Provides oversight and has primary responsibility to the CNGB on the human resource program development, staffing, and execution of policy, plans, and programs concerning technician employment.
- c. The Chief, Technician Personnel Division, NGB-J1-TN, is the primary advisor to NGB-J1, commanders, staff, and operating officials on all matters pertaining to military technicians assigned to the National Guard. Develops, maintains, and revises technician programs concerning voluntary and non-disciplinary actions in employment.
- d. The Adjutant General (TAG). Establish an effective system to provide coordinated management direction regarding voluntary and non-disciplinary actions.
- e. Joint Force Headquarters-State, JFHQ (St) J-1 provides oversight and has primary responsibility to TAG on the state's human resources technician program development, staffing, and execution of policy, plans and programs concerning voluntary and nondiscipinary actions.
  - f. Human Resources Officer (HRO).
- (1) Issues regulatory guidance and direction to State managers and supervisors on their responsibilities, rights and obligations;
- (2) Ensures State programs comply with applicable law, this TPR, and negotiated collective bargaining agreements (CBA);
- (3) May negotiate with local labor organizations supplementary procedures within the context of appropriate arrangements for all bargaining unit technicians.
- g. Employee Relations Specialist in conjunction with the Labor Relations Specialist. Administers voluntary and non-disciplinary action programs for the Human Resources Officer (HRO) and TAG.
  - (1) Implement and prepare local guidance.
- (2) Provide advice, assistance and training to commanders, managers, and supervisors on effective use and participation in the program.
- (3) Monitor compliance with law, applicable CFR's, CPM's, and sections of this TPR, and all local directives and policies of TAG.
  - (4) Represent and/or advise the representative of TAG in cases regarding Technician Employee Relations.
- (5) When proposing new regulations, policies and local directives that substantially impact working conditions, the exclusive representative (labor organization) for the bargaining unit will be notified. Local directives and policies may not violate a negotiated CBA.

h. Managers and Supervisors. Ensure actions taken or proposed on behalf of TAG comply with law, applicable CFR's, CPM's, and sections of this TPR, all local directives and policies of TAG, and the CBA if required.

# Chapter 2 Voluntary Action

### 2-1. Resignation

- a. Resignation is a voluntary termination of employment. A technician can resign at any time; advance notice is not required. Management may ask for a reasonable period of notice to allow for a replacement or work adjustment but may not set an earlier or later date than the date selected by the technician.
- b. A technician who plans to resign should complete a SF 52 or submit the resignation in writing, signed and dated, with an effective date and reasons for resigning. When the resignation is made orally, management should try to obtain written confirmation of the resignation from the technician. If this is not possible, the person to whom the resignation request is addressed should prepare a memorandum for the record to document the request including reasons given by the technician, the date, and names of any witnesses. Relevant documents are attached to the SF 52 used to process the resignation. Technicians should be encouraged to give specific reasons for resigning since these reasons are used to determine future employment eligibility and entitlement to various benefits including unemployment compensation. They also provide management with helpful information in assessing employment trends.
- c. Management cannot demand a technician's resignation. However, when a technician is faced with an adverse action, management should refer the individual to the HRO for advice on options, including resignation. The technician should also be advised the effective date of the resignation, such as prior to or after the adverse action is proposed, dictates whether remarks about the adverse action can be placed on the resignation SF 50. A technician who resigns rather than face the adverse action process forfeits adverse action appeal rights. To make a well-informed decision, a technician should be referred to the HRO for advice on options, rights and benefits information.
- d. A technician may request to withdraw a resignation before it becomes effective. Requests to withdraw must be in writing; verbal requests must be followed up in writing within five workdays. Within the Department of Defense there are generally two circumstances where management may deny withdrawal. These are:
  - (1) When the technician's position has been or is scheduled to be abolished; or
- (2) When a commitment of the position to be vacated has been obligated to someone else (e.g. an individual is selected for the projected vacancy through the merit placement process and has given notice to his/her current employer). If a technician's request to withdraw a resignation before it becomes effective is denied, management must provide a written explanation of its decision and advise the technician of the right to request an appellate review or administrative hearing (see TPR 752 for a description of both appeal processes). Management has the burden of establishing the validity of its reasons for denying withdrawal (5 CFR Subpart B part 715.202).
- e. A technician who has resigned and then alleges the resignation was involuntary must be advised by the HRO of the right to appeal. The technician can request an appellate review, administrative hearing (see TPR 752 for a description of both appeal processes), or a grievance under the terms of an applicable collective bargaining agreement. The timely selection of one forum precludes processing an appeal/grievance in the other forum. The burden is upon the technician to prove by a preponderance of the evidence<sup>1</sup> the involuntary nature of the action.<sup>2</sup>
- f. When a request for a voluntary resignation in lieu of an adverse action is withdrawn, the adverse action under TPR 752 that prompted the resignation will be resumed. All time periods under TPR 752 that were stayed or delayed because of the resignation will be resumed at the point the voluntary resignation is withdrawn.

<sup>1</sup> Considering the record as a whole, the evidence is more convincing to The State Adjutant General than the opposing evidence.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Case law holds that free choice is undermined to the extent that employees experience duress, time pressure, or mental incompetence at the time of their decision. Several decisions hold that a resignation is deemed involuntary if free choice is compromised (obtained by deception, coercion, duress, time pressure or intimidation). Note however that a choice between two adverse events is not generally held to be coercion, duress or intimidation.

### 2-2. Change to a Lower Grade

a. A technician can request a voluntary change to a lower grade at any time. Such requests are normally made for personal reasons and are usually in the technician's own best interest. A request for a voluntary change to lower grade must be in writing with all facts and circumstances surrounding the action documented. A voluntary change to lower grade at the request of the technician does not carry a right to pay retention under 5 U.S.C. 5363(a)(3). See TPR 500 for guidance on grade and pay retention.

- b. Management cannot demand a technician request a change to lower grade. However, when a technician is faced with an adverse action, management may advise the individual of the option to voluntarily request a change to a lower grade. To make a well-informed decision, a technician should be referred to the HRO for rights and benefits information.
- c. A technician may withdraw a voluntary request for a change to lower grade before it becomes effective. Requests to withdraw must be in writing (signed and dated); verbal requests must be followed up in writing within five workdays. There are two circumstances where management may deny withdrawal. Both are explained in paragraph 2-1d. If a technician's request is denied, management must provide a written explanation of its decision and advise the technician of the right to an appellate review, administrative hearing (see TPR 752 for a description of both appeal processes), or a grievance under the terms of an applicable CBA. Management has the burden of establishing the validity of its reasons for denying the withdrawal.
- d. A technician who alleges the change to lower grade was not voluntary will have his/her allegations processed in accordance with the procedures established in paragraph 2-1e.
- e. When a request for a voluntary change to lower grade in lieu of an adverse action is withdrawn, the adverse action under TPR 752 will be resumed. All time periods that were stayed or delayed because of the request for change to lower grade will be resumed at the point the request for a voluntary downgrade is withdrawn.

### 2-3. Optional Retirement

- a. Application for optional retirement is a voluntary expression of a technician's desire to retire. The effective date is specified in the retirement application (SF 2801) provided the eligibility requirements are satisfied on that date.
- b. Management cannot demand a technician retire. When a technician is faced with an adverse action, however, management may advise the individual of the option to retire. To make a well-informed decision, a technician should be referred to the HRO for rights and benefits information.
- c. A technician may request to withdraw an application for retirement before it becomes effective. Requests to withdraw must be in writing; verbal requests must be followed up in writing within five work days. Within the Department of Defense there are two circumstances under which management may deny the request to withdraw. These two circumstances are explained in paragraph 2-1d. If a technician's withdrawal request is denied, management must provide written explanation of its decision and advise the technician of the right to an appellate review, an administrative hearing (see TPR 752 for a description of both appeal processes), or a grievance under the terms of an applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement. Management has the burden of establishing the validity of its reasons for denying the withdrawal.
- d. A technician who has retired and then alleges the action was involuntary will have the allegations processed in accordance with the procedures established in paragraph 2-1e.
- e. When a request for a voluntary retirement is withdrawn that is made in lieu of an adverse action, the adverse action under TPR 752 that prompted the retirement will be resumed. All time periods that were stayed or delayed will be resumed at the time the request for voluntary retirement is withdrawn.

# 2.4. Abandonment of Position

- a. A technician can be removed for abandonment of position if he/she fails to report for work within a reasonable time (usually 10 calendar days). Management must attempt to ascertain the technician's intentions and document those attempts. If no intent to return can be established, the HRO processes the removal action and forwards the written notice by certified mail to the technician's last known home address. The removal is effective the last day the technician was at work or the last day of approved leave, whichever is later.
- b. Abandonment of position is a voluntary termination from technician employment and as such will not require the 30-day notification established by 32 U.S.C. 709(f)(5).<sup>3</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> 32 USC 709(f)(5) ... a technician shall be notified in writing of the termination of his employment as a technician and ... such notification shall be given at least 30 days before the termination date of such (Cont. next page)

c. A technician who requests to return to duty after an abandonment of position will be advised by the HRO of the right to appeal as outlined in paragraph 2-1e. The burden is on management to prove the technician abandoned the position.

d. A technician who challenges an abandonment of position determination may be charged with the offense(s) of AWOL under the provisions of TPR 752.

# Chapter 3 Non-Disciplinary Action<sup>4</sup>

### 3-1. Loss of Military Membership

- a. Federal law requires civilian personnel employed pursuant to 32 U.S.C. 709 (a) to maintain membership in the National Guard as a condition of continued employment and requires prompt termination from the current position upon loss of membership in the Army or Air National Guard. The one exception to the requirement for prompt termination upon loss of military membership is in pending disability retirement claims. Under these circumstances, a technician who has lost military membership may be retained until the OPM's adjudication is received.
- b. A technician must be notified in writing of his/her termination at least 30 calendar days before the termination date<sup>6</sup> (unless serving under a temporary appointment, serving a trial or probationary period, or has voluntarily ceased to be a member of the National Guard). Termination from technician employment will coincide with separation from the National Guard since waiting until the military separation date to issue the notice would not be in keeping with the intent of Congress. The following rules apply when computing the 30-day notice:
  - (1) Day means calendar day;
  - (2) Calendar day is the 24-hour period between 12 midnight and 12 midnight;
- (3)The 30-day period begins the day after the notification is given directly to the technician or, if mailed, five days after the date mailed as shown on the certified mail return receipt;
  - (4) The last day of the 30-day period may not be a non-work day and
  - (5) There is no prohibition against effecting this action during the period 15 December through 3 January.
- c. A technician has the option of waiving the 30-day notice requirement (waivers must be in writing). Preparation and issuance of the notice is an HRO responsibility.

employment (unless the technician is serving under a temporary appointment, is serving a trial or probationary period or has voluntarily ceased to be a member of the National Guard...).

32 U.S.C.  $709(f)(1)(A) \dots$  a person employed under subsection (a) who is a military technician (dual status) . . . who is separated from the National Guard or ceases to hold the military grade specified by the Secretary concerned for that position shall be promptly separated from military technician (dual status) employment . . .

The Supreme Court of the United States, in the case of *Tennessee v. Dunlap*, 426 U.S. 312 (1976), found no constitutional or due process defect in this arrangement.

<sup>6</sup> 32 U.S.C. 709(f)(5) a technician shall be notified in writing of the termination of his employment as a technician and . . . such notification shall be given at least 30 days before the termination date of such employment (unless serving under a temporary appointment, serving a probationary or trial period, or voluntarily ceases to be a member of the National Guard...).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Non-disciplinary action is an adverse action taken for reason(s) other than to correct an employee's delinquency or misconduct. These actions are normally initiated and decided upon based on actions such as, but not limited to: lack of funds or work; changes to lower grade based on classification; or physical or mental inability to perform the duties of the position.

 $<sup>^5</sup>$  32 U.S.C. 709(b)(1) and (2) ... a person employed under subsection (a) must . . . be a military technician (dual status). . be a member of the National Guard....

# 3-2. Failure to Meet a Condition of Employment

a. There are many situations that constitute a failure to meet a condition of employment. The following represent the more common ones:

- (1) Failure to maintain a compatible military assignment. For example, a technician fails a training course required for military assignment and is militarily reassigned, resulting in an incompatible assignment. Or, because of poor performance in the technician's military assignment, an individual is militarily reassigned, causing an incompatible assignment.<sup>7</sup> In both examples, management may reassign the technician to a compatible military assignment, or terminate the technician for failure to maintain a compatible military assignment.
- (2) Failure to maintain the military appointment requirement for the position. For example, a technician assigned to an "enlisted only" position is appointed as a commissioned officer.<sup>8</sup>
  - (3) Failure to maintain the military rank required for the position.
  - (4) Failure to maintain flying status.
  - (5) Failure to maintain a state driver's license.
  - (6) Failure to maintain current qualifications as an aircrew member.
  - (7) Failure to meet the physical standards required for an aircrew member.
  - (8) Revocation of authorization to carry a firearm.
  - (9) Failure to maintain security clearance.
  - (10) Failure to remain qualified in the Personnel Reliability Program.
  - (11) Failure to complete military training.
  - (12) Physical inability to perform technician duties efficiently and/or safely.<sup>9</sup>

For example, the technician is physically prohibited by his/her physician from climbing, if it is not a temporary condition.

- (13) Failure to maintain a compatible military assignment.
- (14) Failure to restore to technician status after five years of uniformed service. Refer to Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA).
- b. If a technician can no longer meet a condition of their employment, management must take appropriate action. If the situation is of a temporary nature, management shall review the portion of the duties the technician will be able to continue performing and if the organization can withstand curtailment of duties for a temporary period of time. Answers to these questions will assist management to assess its options in:
  - (1) Leaving the technician in his/her position for the time period involved;
  - (2) Detailing the technician;
  - (3) Reassigning the technician;
  - (4) Offering the technician a change to lower grade; or
  - (5) Terminating the technician.
- c. If the inability to meet a requirement of the position is permanent, management must remove the technician from the position either by reassignment, change to lower grade, or termination.
- d. Decisions made in each case must be documented with well-founded justification. No decisions should be made without HRO coordination since placement could involve such things as compatibility, qualifications, training, pay, and technician assistance program. Regardless of the alternative selected, the HRO must advise the technician in writing.
- e. If management determines a change to lower grade or reassignment is necessary, it must provide the technician with a reasonable amount of time to accept or reject the offer, usually 15 calendar days. The written notification must inform the technician that should he/she choose not to accept the offer, termination will be effected.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Martelon v. Temple, 747 F.2d 1348 (10th Cir. 1984), cert. denied 105 S.Ct. 2675 (1985).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> TPR 300(302.7) permits The Adjutants General to make an exception to this requirement when the military appointment requirement (officer, warrant officer, enlisted) of a technician's position changes.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> The Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA) requires agencies to make "reasonable accommodations" to "qualified individuals with disabilities". An individual is considered to have a "disability" if s/he has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activity, has a record of such impairment, or is regarded as having such an impairment. It is strongly recommended that applicable EEOC regulations be reviewed before proceeding with this type of action.

The notice must include any appeal and grievance rights. The date of termination included in the memorandum to the technician must provide for a 30-day written notice.

### 3-3. Military Appointment Requirements

Military appointment requirements (officer, warrant officer, enlisted) are specified on position descriptions. A technician who fails to maintain the military appointment requirements must be removed from the technician position. Normally this occurs when an enlisted technician is commissioned into the warrant officer or officer corps. Therefore, military technicians must be advised as early as possible about the effects such a military appointment will have on his/her technician employment. The supervisor is responsible for issuing a written notice informing the military technician that:

- a. Acceptance of an incompatible military appointment will result in termination from technician employment;
- b. Unless selected for a position designated as warrant officer or officer, termination from technician civilian employment will occur upon receipt of temporary Federal recognition (ARNG) or upon graduation from the Academy of Military Science (ANG).

Subsequently, the HRO must ensure the 30-day notice requirement established by 32 U.S.C. 709(f)(5) is accomplished.

# 3-4. Termination of General Officers

A military technician promoted to general officer cannot continue in technician employment unless they meet the criteria outlined in TPR 303. Therefore, the HRO must issue a written notice as early as possible to advise the military technician that: (1) promotion to general officer will result in termination from technician employment, and (2) termination will occur not later than 14 days following the date of Federal recognition to any general officer grade that does not meet the criteria outlined in TPR 300. A copy of the Standard Form 50 terminating technician status must be provided to the NGB General Officer Management Office (NGB-GO) before Federal recognition orders can be published. The HRO must ensure the 30-day notice requirement established by 32 U.S.C. 709(f)(5) is accomplished.<sup>10</sup>

# 3-5. Management-Directed Reassignment

- a. Management may reassign a technician to another position at the same grade and pay.<sup>11</sup> It can also include the movement of a technician from a position with potential for noncompetitive promotion to a position without that potential. There must be a valid reason for a management-directed reassignment. Examples of valid reasons include but are not limited to the following: management needs the technician's expertise / talents elsewhere; action is required to prevent an incompatible assignment or a grade inversion situation; or action is required to eliminate or avoid disruption and conflict where personal disagreements are affecting work relationships.
- b. The Human Resources Office is responsible for providing the technician with written notification of a management-directed reassignment. At a minimum, this notification will:
- (1) Explain why the management-directed reassignment is taking place (i.e. there must be sufficient detail to establish the action is for legitimate reasons);
  - (2) State the effective date for the action;
- (3) Provide the technician with a reasonable amount of time (normally 5 work days) to accept or reject the assignment;
- (4) Provide benefit information applicable to the technician if the technician rejects the offer and termination occurs;

<sup>10</sup> As part of the package to be considered for general officer, a technician must sign a Statement of Understanding acknowledging the termination of their technician status in order to become a general officer. A copy of the Statement of Understanding is provided to the HRO from the personnel offices (ARNG and ANG) at the state HQ eight months prior to any action being taken. This Form may serve as the 30-day written notice under the statute.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> If the reassignment is a change to a lower graded position but is considered to be in the best interest of the Government and the technician concurs in the action, then the action is processed in accordance with TPR 715. If the technician does not concur with the reassignment to a change to lower grade, then the action must be processed in accordance with either TPR 752 (misconduct), or TPR 430 (performance).

(5) Explain that if the offer is rejected, the notification memorandum constitutes a 30-day notice of termination; and

(6) Inform the technician that there is no appeal of termination under this section.

### 3-6. Transfer of Function.

The NGB reduction-in-force regulation, TPR 351, establishes procedures for transfer of function, although it is advised to also review the CBA. The HRO is responsible for providing written notification of the transfer. This notice must:

- a. Explain why the transfer of function is occurring;
- b. Provide the effective date for the transfer;
- c. Give the technician a reasonable amount of time (normally 10 calendar days) to accept or reject the transfer;
- d. Explain that if the offer is rejected, the notification memorandum constitutes a 30-day notice of termination; and
  - e. Provide benefit information applicable to the technician if termination occurs.

# 3-7. Furlough for 30 Days or Less (22 Workdays)

- a. Management has the inherent authority to furlough any or all of its technicians if there are legitimate reasons. Situations under which a furlough can be used include lack of work, lack of funds, or unforeseeable circumstances such as breakdown in equipment, natural disasters, sabotage, or sudden emergencies requiring immediate curtailment of activities.
- b. Collective bargaining obligations and negotiated agreement provisions on furlough procedures must be honored. If exception to negotiated procedures are required by management's authority to act in an emergency, labor organizations should be informed in advance of the nature and extent of the emergency.
- c. The HRO is responsible for preparing and issuing written furlough notices. Such notices may be addressed to groups of technicians, but a copy must be provided to each technician or forwarded to the technician's address of record a minimum of 24-hours before the effective date of the furlough. Such notices will include: (1) the reason for the furlough; (2) the estimated length of the furlough (a furlough period can be for 30 consecutive calendar days or 22 nonconsecutive workdays; e.g., 1 day per week for 22 weeks); and (3) a statement the technician has the right to have the furlough action reviewed by TAG.
- d. A technician who requests review of the furlough action submits his/her objections to the HRO. TAG takes whatever action he/she deems appropriate to thoroughly review the technician's objections along with management's need for the furlough. A final decision is then issued by TAG summarizing the objections and the method of review and concluding with the reasons for the final decision. (Management is responsible for establishing the appropriateness of the furlough.) The decision must also advise the technician there is no further administrative appeal to TAG's final decision.

(NOTE: Furloughs in excess of 30 calendar days (22 workdays) must be processed in accordance with TPR 300(351).)

# 3-8. Decrease in the Hours of Duty for a Part-time Technician

- a. Part-time employment is covered in TPR 300. Before management can decrease the specific number of hours a part-time technician has been employed to work on his/her prearranged scheduled tour of duty, the technician must be provided written notification of the decrease. As a minimum, the notification must be given to the technician in advance of the pay period in which the change occurs. The notice must include the reason for the decrease and a right to have the action reviewed by TAG. The notification memorandum must be cleared by the HRO before issuance.
- b. A technician who requests review of the decrease in hours submits his/her objections to The TAG. TAG takes whatever action he/she deems appropriate to thoroughly review the technician's objections along with management's rationale for the decrease. A final decision is then issued by TAG summarizing the objections and the method of review and concluding with the reasons for the final decision. (Management is responsible for establishing the appropriateness of the decrease). The technician must also be advised there is no further administrative appeal to TAG's final decision.

# 3-9. Enforced Leave

a. Management has the right to require a technician to leave the worksite when it is determined that: the technician is not ready, willing, and able to perform assigned duties; and/or the technician's continued presence is

highly undesirable or presents an immediate threat to Government property or the well being of the technician, coworkers, or the public. The following three examples illustrate this management right:

- (1) A technician reports to work without required safety equipment. At that point the technician is not ready and able to perform assigned duties. A supervisor can place the technician on annual leave, compensatory time-off, or LWOP until he/she reports to work with the required safety equipment.
- (2) A technician appears for work in what the supervisor reasonably determines to be an unsafe state due to illness, alcohol abuse, medication, controlled substance abuse, or other causes. Attempts to have the technician explain the condition are unsuccessful. The supervisor determines that the technician's continued presence creates an immediate threat to Government property, the technician, and/or fellow co-workers. The supervisor affords the technician an option of being taken home or to a family physician or having a family member called. If he/she refuses to choose or is unable to choose, the supervisor selects the best alternative. When the technician reports to work the next day, the supervisor advises him/her that unless there is a reasonable explanation, the leave status for the non-duty time will be LWOP. If there is a reasonable explanation (for example, reaction to new medication that can be supported by a doctor's statement), the supervisor can give the technician the option of using annual leave, compensatory time-off, or sick leave. The technician is then advised no further action will be taken or the incident is still being appraised and disciplinary or adverse action could result.
- (3) A technician is in a rage, disrupting the entire shop (throwing objects and cursing). Attempts to calm the technician are rebuked. The supervisor determines the technician's continued presence would be highly undesirable. The technician is advised he/she is being placed in a LWOP status and to immediately leave the worksite and return when calmed down. The technician regains composure and reports to work the next day. The supervisor advises the technician that unless there is a reasonable explanation, the LWOP status from the previous day will not be changed. If the explanation alters the supervisor's position on the LWOP (for example, technician first learned of a family member's serious illness), the technician can be offered the option of taking appropriate leave. The technician is advised no further action will be taken or the incident is still being appraised and disciplinary or adverse action could result.
- b. Enforced leave may not be continued once management determines the technician is ready, willing, and able to perform assigned duties or the immediate emergency is resolved.

# Appendix A

# References

# **Section I**

# **Required Publications**

# **Executive Order 11478**

Equal Employment Opportunity in the Federal Government

### **TPR 430**

National Guard Technician Performance Appraisal System

# **5 CFR Part 630**

OPM Policies and Requirements for Absence and Leave Programs

# 5 U.S.C. Chapter 63

Absence and Leave. Provides basic statute governing leave and hours of work

# 32 U.S.C. Section 709

Technicians: Employment, Use, Status. A Codification of The National Guard Technicians Act, Public Law 90-486 of 1968

# **Section II**

# **Related Publications**

Contains no entries.

# **Section III**

# **Prescribed Forms**

Contains no entries.

# **Section IV**

# **Referenced Forms**

Contains no entries.

# Appendix B

**Leave and Absence Coding** 

# **B-1. Paid Absences**

Annual Leave	LA
Court Leave	LC
Enforced Annual Leave	LF
Holiday Leave	LH
Military Leave (DC Guard Only)	LI
Law Enforcement Leave (LEL)	LL
Military Leave	LM
Administrative Leave (Excused Absence)	LN

Sick Leave	LS
Traumatic Injury (Continuation of Pay – COP)	LT
Time Off Award	LY
B-2. Unpaid Absences	
Leave Without Pay	KA
Suspension	KB
Absent Without Leave (AWOL)	KC
Workers Compensation Program (OWCP)	KD
Furlough	KE
Leave Without Pay – US (For Military Duty).	KG
B-3. Compensatory Time	
Compensatory Time Earned	CE
Compensatory Time Taken	СТ

# Glossary

# **Section I**

**Abbreviations** 

# **ANG**

Air National Guard

# **ARNG**

Army National Guard

# ADT

Active Duty for Training

# $\mathbf{AT}$

**Annual Training** 

# **CBA**

Collective Bargaining Agreement

# **CFR**

The Code of Federal Regulations

# $\mathbf{C}\mathbf{G}$

Commanding General

# **CJCS**

Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff

# **CPM**

Civilian Personnel Manual

# DoD

Department of Defense

### EEC

**Equal Employment Opportunity** 

# EO

**Executive Order** 

# $\mathbf{F}\mathbf{Y}$

Fiscal year

# **HQDA**

Headquarters, Department of the Army

# HR

**Human Resources** 

# HRO

**Human Resources Officer** 

# **IDT**

**Inactive Duty Training** 

# LEL

Law Enforcement Leave

# **LWOP**

Leave Without Pay

# MOS

Military Occupational Specialty

# **MPA**

Military Personnel Authorization

### NGR

National Guard Bureau

# **OPM**

Office of Personnel Management

# **OSD**

Office of the Secretary of Defense

### **PCS**

Permanent Change of Station

# **SAD**

State Active Duty

# TAG

The Adjutant General

### TPR

Technician Personnel Regulation

# **USA**

United States Army

# **USAF**

United States Air Force

### **VLT**

Voluntary Leave Transfer

# **Section II**

**Terms** 

# **Accrued Leave**

Leave earned by an employee during the current leave year that is unused at any given time in that leave year.

# **Accumulated Leave**

Unused leave remaining to the credit of an employee at the beginning of a leave year.

# **Excused Absence**

Absence from duty administratively authorized without loss of pay and without charge to leave.

### Leave Year

The period beginning with the first day of the first complete pay period in a calendar year and ending with the day immediately before the first day of the first complete pay period in the following calendar year.

### **Medical Certificate**

A written statement signed by a registered practicing physician or other practitioner, certifying to the incapacitation, examination, treatment, or the period of disability.

# **Technician**

Dual Status and Non-Dual Status technicians defined in 32 U.S.C. §709.

# **Section III**

# **Special Terms**

This section contains no entries.